
Oklahoma Board of Corrections 

REGULAR MEETING 

June 12, 2019 

Oklahoma Department of Corrections 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 



 

 

OKLAHOMA BOARD OF CORRECTIONS 
REGULAR MEETING AMENDED AGENDA 

Oklahoma Department of Corrections 
3400 N Martin Luther King Ave 

Oklahoma City, OK 73111 
1:00 PM on June 12, 2019 

Members of the Board of Corrections will be dining together before the Board meeting. 
No business will be conducted during this time period. 

 
 ITEM PRESENTER 

1. Call to Order  
A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 

Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 

 
 

2. Election of Officers All Members 
 

 
3. Consideration and Approval of Standing Board of 

Corrections Committee 
A. Technology and Systems Oversight Committee 

Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 

 
 

4. Approval of Board of Corrections Regular Meeting 
Minutes for: 

A. February 13, 2019 
B. May 15, 2019 

Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 

 
 

5. Approval of Appointments 
A. Sharon McCoy as Warden of the Jess Dunn 

Correctional Center 
B. Natalie Cooper as Warden of the Dr. Eddie 

Warrior Correctional Center 
C. Blaine Nelson as Warden of the Howard McLeod 

Correctional Center 

Millicent Newton Embry, Director 
Region I 

 
 

6. Discussion and approval of the adoption of uniform and 
fixed rates established by the Department of Mental 
Health and Substance Abuse Services previously approved 
by the Oklahoma Management and Enterprise Services 
pursuant to 74 O.S. § 85.7(A)(11) (Proposed rates included 
on Attachment A of this agenda) 

David Cincotta, General Counsel 

 
 

7. Director’s Comments Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 



 

 

Pursuant to 61 O.S. § 130, the chief administrative officer of a public agency with a governing body shall notify the 
governing body within ten (10) days of the declaration of an emergency if the governing body did not approve the 
emergency. The notification shall contain a statement of the reasons for the action, and shall be recorded in the 
official minutes of the governing body.  

A. Emergency purchase authorization to repair electrical transformers at the William Key 
Correctional Center on March 13, 2019 

B. Emergency purchase authorization to repair lift station pumps at the Lawton Community 
Corrections Center on March 22, 2019 

  
 

8 New Business Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 
 

 
9. Announcements Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 

 
 

10. Approval to Enter into Executive Session David Cincotta, General Counsel 
Pursuant to 25 O.S. § 307(B)(9), discussing matters involving safety and security at state penal institutions or 
correctional facilities used to house state inmates. 

A. Discussion of security strategies being used and considered by the agency in combatting the 
introduction of contraband at penal institutions 

 
Pursuant to 25 O.S. § 307(B)(10), discussing contract negotiations involving contracts requiring approval of the Board 
of Corrections, which shall be limited to members of the public body, the attorney for the public body, and the 
immediate staff of the public body. No person who may profit directly or indirectly by a proposed transaction which 
is under consideration may be present or participate in the executive session. 

B. Discussion of contract negotiations involving a new Correctional Services Contract with CoreCivic 
(previously Corrections Corporation of America) and amendment of the current Correctional 
Services Contract. 

 
Pursuant to 25 O.S. § 307(B)(4), for confidential communications between a public body and its attorney concerning 
the pending investigation and litigation of the items listed below if the public body, with the advice of its attorney, 
determines that disclosure will seriously impair the ability of the public body to conduct a pending investigation, 
litigation, or proceeding in the public interest. 

C. Suicide of John Cheetham #448376 at the Joseph Harp Correctional Center (case number IG 19-
0057) 

D. Board of County Commissioners of the County of Tulsa, Oklahoma, et al. vs. The State of 
Oklahoma ex rel. DOC, et al. (case number CV-2017-684, Oklahoma County District Court)  

E. Smith v. Allbaugh, et al. (case number CIV-19-470-G, U.S. District Court - Western District of 
Oklahoma) 

  
 

11. Approval to Return from Executive Session David Cincotta, General Counsel 
 

 
12. Discussion and Approval of Amendment #1 Correctional 

Services Contract with GEO Group, Inc. to amend 
Appendix C, Liquidated Damages. 

David Cincotta, General Counsel 

 



 

 

 
 

13. Discussion and Approval of Amendment #4 Correctional 
Services Contract with Corrections Corporation of 
America (CoreCivic) to amend the term of the Contract by 
extending it for one year. 

David Cincotta, General Counsel 

 
 

14. Adjournment Joe M. Allbaugh, Director 
 

 
 The next regular meeting of the Board of Corrections will be held at 1:00 PM on Wednesday, August 14, 2019, at the 

Oklahoma Department of Corrections in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. 

 Updated on 6/10/2019 10:51 AM 

 



Attachment A

Page 1 of 2

Description of ODMHSAS Services Current Rates Proposed Rates

Additional 

Services with 

Proposed Rate

Behavioral Health Assessment (Non-MD), Mental Health $40.87 / 30 Min $103.33 / Event

Behavioral Health Assessment (Non-MD, Substance Abuse $30.00 / 30 Min $103.33 / Event

Group Psychotherapy, Mental Health $18.57 / 30 Min $9.56 / 15 Min

Group Psychotherapy, Substance Abuse $16.00 / 30 Min $9.56 / 15 Min

Individual Psychotherapy, Mental Health $37.15 / 30 Min $19.13 / 15 Min

Individual Psychotherapy, Substance Abuse $28.00 / 30 Min $19.13 / 15 Min

Residential Treatment - Substance Abuse $74.00 / Day $85.00 / Day

Residential Treatment for Women with Dependent Children - Substance 

Abuse
$95.00 / Day $100.00 / Day

Residential Treatment for Adults with Co-Occurring Disorders $82.00 / Day $100.00 / Day

Medically Supervised Detoxification Services -Substance Abuse $124.00 / Day $144.00 / Day

Behavioral Health Assessment (Non-MD), Mental Health (Licensure 

Candidate)
$90.41 / Event

Behavioral Health Assessment (Non-MD), Substance Abuse (Licensure 

Candidate)
$90.41 / Event

Group Psychotherapy, Licensure Candidate -Substance Abuse $8.60 / 15 Min

Group Psychotherapy, Licensure Candidate - Mental Health $8.60 / 15 Min

Individual Psychotherapy, Licensure Candidate - Substance Abuse $17.21 / 15 Min

Individual Psychotherapy, Licensure Candidate - Mental Health $17.21 / 15 Min

Inpatient Medical Detoxification $62.00 / Day

Non-Medical Detoxification Services for Women with Dependent 

Children and Pregnant Women - Substance Abuse
$94.00 / Day

Halfway House -Substance Abuse $46.00 / Day

Halfway House for Co-Occurring Disorders - Substance Abuse $46.00 / Day

Halfway House Services for Women with Dependent Children $63.00 / Day

Halfway House Services for Pregnant & Post-Partum Women $117.00 / Day

Non-Medical Detoxification Services -Substance Abuse $82.00 / Day

Screening and Referral - Substance Abuse $25.32 / Event

Screening and Referral - Mental Health $25.32 / Event

Screening and Referral - Co-Occurring $25.32 / Event

Case Management - Substance Abuse $16.38 / 15 Min

Case Management - Mental Health $16.38 / 15 Min

Consultation -Substance Abuse $7.00 / 15 Min

Customer Follow-Up - Substance Abuse $0.83 / 1 Min

Customer Follow-Up - Mental Health $0.83 / 1 Min

Crisis Intervention Face to Face - Mental Health $27.86 / 15 Min

Crisis Intervention Face to Face - Mental Health (Licensure Candidate) $25.07 / 15 Min

Crisis Intervention Face to Face -Substance Abuse $27.86 / 15 Min

Crisis Intervention Face to Face -Substance Abuse (Licensure Candidate) $25.07 / 15 Min

Crisis Intervention Telephone - Mental Health $19.50 / 15 Min

Crisis Intervention Telephone - Substance Abuse $19.50 / 15 Min

Individual Rehabilitative Treatment — Mental Health $15.20 / 15 Min

Individual Rehabilitative Treatment —Substance Abuse $15.20 / 15 Min

Group Rehabilitative Treatment — Mental Health $4.22 / 15 Min

Group Rehabilitative Treatment — Substance Abuse $4.22 / 15 Min



Attachment A

Page 2 of 2

Description of ODMHSAS Services Current Rates Proposed Rates

Additional 

Services with 

Proposed Rate

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Mental 

Health (Outpatient)
$9.75 / 15 Min

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Substance 

Abuse (Outpatient)
$9.75 / 15 Min

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Substance 

Abuse (Group)
$1.45 / 15 Min

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Mental 

Health (Group)
$1.45 / 15 Min

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Mental 

Health (Telephone)
$0.65 / 1 Min

Community Recovery Support / Recovery Support Specialist — Substance 

Abuse (Telephone)
$0.65 / 1 Min

Treatment Team Meeting — Substance Abuse $7.00 / 15 Min

Court Related Services — Substance Abuse $13.75 / 15 Min

Court Related Services — Mental Health $13.75 / 15 Min

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Moderate Complexity — 

Mental Health
$135.08 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Moderate Complexity — 

Substance Abuse
$138.08 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Moderate Complexity — 

Mental Health (Licensure Candidate)
$121.57 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Moderate Complexity — 

Substance Abuse (Licensure Candidate)
$121.57 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Low Complexity — Mental 

Health
$84.48 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Low Complexity — 

Substance Abuse
$84.48 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Low Complexity — Mental 

Health (Licensure Candidate)
$76.03 / Event

Behavioral Health Service Plan Development Low Complexity — 

Substance Abuse (Licensure Candidate)
$76.03 / Event



 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Item #4.A 



 
  

O K L A H O M A  B O A R D  O F  C O R R E C T I O N S  

REGULAR MEETING  MINUTES  
 

 ITEM PRESENTER 
1. Call  to Order   

Pledge of Allegiance  
Roll  Cal l  

Frank X. Henke, IV,  Chair  

Chair Henke called the regular  meeting of the Oklahoma Board of Corrections (BOC) to  
order at 1:00 PM on Wednesday, February 13, 2019, at the Oklahoma Department of  
Corrections (ODOC) ,  3400 North Martin Luther King Avenue, in Oklahoma City ,  
Oklahoma.  
 
The meeting was  preceded by advance not ice of the date, t ime, and place, f i led with 
the Oklahoma Secretary of State on October 31, 2018. An announcement was also given 
at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance by  posting not ice of the date, t ime, place,  
and agenda of  the meeting at 9:30 AM on Tuesday,  January 15 , 2019, at the principal 
off ice of the ODOC, located at 3400 North Martin Luther King Avenue in Oklahoma 
City,  Oklahoma.  
 
Chair Henke then led the meeting attendees in rec it ing the pledge of al legiance to the 
United States  Flag. After the pledge, he asked the c lerk to cal l  the roll :  
 

Kevin J .  Gross  Present  Adam Luck  Present  

Gene Haynes  Present  Dianne Owens  Present  

Frank X. Henke, IV  Absent  Michael W. Roach  Present  

John T. Holder  Present    

 
Call ing of the roll  reflected a quorum was present.   

 
2.  Approval of Board of Corrections Regular Meeting 

Minutes for January 16, 2019  
Frank X. Henke, IV,  Chair  

Chair Henke stated the BOC had previously received the regular meeting minutes from 
January  16, 2019, for review and he would entertain a  motion to  approve. A copy of  
the meeting minutes was inc luded in the BOC Packet for February 13, 2019 . 
 
Motion:  Mr. Holder made a motion to approve the minutes and Mr. Luck seconded the 
motion. The results of the roll  ca l l  were:  Mr. Gross –  yes;  Mr. Haynes –  yes;  Mr. Henke 
–  abstain;  Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr.  Roach -  yes  
 
The minutes were approved by majority vote. There was no further discuss ion.  

 
3.  Operations Update  

  Construction/Maintenance Bond Projects 
Update 

Scott Crow, Chief of Operat ions  



 
  

  Offender Management System Project 
Update 

 
Emergency Purchases in accordance with 61 O.S. §  
130 

  To repair a leak in a hot water l ine at the 
Oklahoma City Community Correct ions 
Center  

“The  chie f  administ rat ive  o ff icer o f  a  pub l ic  agency with a  governing  body  shal l  not i fy  the 
governing body with in  ten (10)  days o f  the dec larat ion  of  an emergency  i f  the  governing  body  
did  not  approve the emergency.  The not i f i cat ion  shal l  conta in  a  statement of  the reasons for 
the act ion,  and sha l l  be  recorded in  the o f f ic ia l  minutes of  the govern ing body.”  61  OS  §  130  

Mr. Crow provided an update on the current status  of construct ion and maintenance 
projects which were authorized after passage of SB 1590 and funding of  $116.5 mil l ion 
in bonds issued by the Oklahoma Capitol Improvement Authority.  Construct ion and 
Maintenance unit  has  init iated several  projects and they are currently  underway at  
several locations. Mr. Crow noted most of the projects  wil l  uti l ize  inmate labor which 
wil l  great ly reduce the overall  costs associated with certain projects .  Staff  are 
di l igently monitoring the projects and he wil l  continue to provide updates to the BOC 
on a regular basis .  
 
The Offender Management System (OMS ) project is  in the f irst  stage of completion.  
$4.8 mil l ion was set  aside for the project  and team has been init iated for  oversight  of 
the project .  Mr. Crow noted that Microsoft was awarded the project and the team is 
reviewing the scope of work.  
 
Mr. Crow also notif ied the BOC of an emergency purchase authorization  by Director  
Allbaugh to repair a leak in a domestic hot water l ine that provided heate d water to  
the administrat ion bui lding and inmate housing unit  at  the Oklahoma City Community 
Corrections Center.  Unti l  repairs were made, hot water was not avai lable to those 
areas of the fac i l ity .  The  estimated cost of the repairs  was $5,000 -  $7,000.  

 
4.  Inmate/Offender Population Update  

 
Approval of Resolution Recogniz ing Retirement of 
Lesia Miser,  Director of Class if ication and 
Population 

Laura Pitman, Ph.D.,  D irector  
Population, Programs, and 

Strategic Planning  

Dr. Pitman provided the agency’s population update as of January  31, 2019. A copy of 
the update was inc luded in the BOC Packet for February 13, 2019. There was no further 
discussion.  
 
Dr.  Pitman then requested the approval of  a resolut ion honoring and congratulat ing 
Ms. Lesia Miser on her retirement from the ODOC. Chair  Henke stated the BOC had 
previously received a copy of the resolut ion for review and he would entertain a  
motion to approve. A copy of the resolut ion was included in the BOC Packet for 
February 13, 2019.  
 



 
  

Motion:  Mr. Holder made a motion to approve the resolut ion as  presented and Mr. 
Luck seconded the motion. The result s of the roll  cal l  were:  Mr. Gross –  yes;  Mr. Haynes 
–  yes;  Mr. Henke –  yes;  Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr. Roach 
–  yes.  
 
The resolution was approved by majority vote. Ms. Miser thanked the BOC members, 
Director Allbaugh,  and Dr.  Pi tman as well  as other staff  for  their  support during her 
career.  There was no further discussion.  

 
5.  Budget Updates  

  Monthly FY 2019 Oklahoma Department of 
Corrections Budget  

  Quarter ly FY 2019 Canteen Operations 
Budget (October 1 –  December 31, 2018)  

Ashlee Clemmons, Director  
Business Services  

Ms. Clemmons provided the agency’s FY 2019 budget  update as of  December 31, 2019, 
as well  as the FY 2019  Canteen Operations budget  for the second quarter .  A copy of 
the budget updates was included in the BOC Packet for February 13, 2019.  There was 
no further discuss ion.  

 
6.  Approval of Board of Corrections Policies and 

Procedures:  
  P-010100, System of Manuals,  Handbooks 

and Monitoring Procedures  
  P-060100, Classif ication and Case 

Management of Inmates/Offenders  
  P-090100, Provisions of Programs  

Penny Lewis,  Director  
Audit ing and Compliance  

 Ms. Lewis presented for BOC approval the policies noted on the agenda , noting that  
the pol icies only contained minor wording changes which did not affect the intent of  
the policy .  Chair Henke stated the BOC had previously received a copy of the policies ,  
including the recommended revis ions,  and he would entertain a  motion to approve.  A 
copy of the pol icies was inc luded i n the BOC Packet for February 13, 2019. 
 
Motion:  Mr. Holder made a motion to approve the pol icies  as  presented and Mr.  
Haynes seconded the motion. The results of the roll  ca l l  were:  Mr. Gross –  yes;  Mr.  
Haynes –  yes;  Mr. Henke –  yes;  Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr.  
Roach –  yes.  
 
The policies were approved by majority vote. There was no further discuss ion.  

 
7.  FY 2019 Internal Financial  Audit  Quarter ly Update  

  July 1,  2019 –  September 30, 2019 
  October 1,  2019 –  December 31, 2019 

Patrick Donnelly,  Auditor  
Audit ing and Compliance  

 Mr. Donnel ly provided the Internal Financial  Audit  update s for  the f i rst  and second 
quarter of  FY 2019, explaining f indings and corrective actions taken. A copy of  the 
update was inc luded in the BOC Packet for February 13, 2019. There was no further  
discussion.  
 
Director Al lbaugh left  the meeting at 1:27 PM.  



 
  

 
8.  Public Safety Forum Update  Jessica Brown, Director 

Communications  
 

Adam Luck, Member  
Board of Corrections  

 Ms. Brown provided an update on the outcome of the Publ ic Safety Forum which the 
agency hosted on January 23, 2019. She noted the var ious topics discussed during the 
forum and Mr. Luck advised of his involvement as  a topic presenter.  Mr. Luck and Ms. 
Brown were in agreement that the forum be conducted annually as an information 
session for lawmakers  pr ior to the legis lative session. Both also noted the posit ive  
feedback received from other part icipants and attendees.  
 
Ms. Brown also noted the ribbon cutting ceremony for The Last  Mile Program at the 
Mabel Bassett Correct ional Center  was held on February 11, 2019. The program wil l  
teach computer coding ski l ls  to inmates for successful reentry and is  ent irely  funded 
by The Last Mile,  The Chan Zuckerburg Init iative,  The George Kaiser Family Foundat ion 
and The Lobeck Taylor Family Foundation . Special  guests at the ceremony included 
Stanley “MC Hammer” Burrell  and Governor Kevin Stitt .  She noted that there is  already 
interest in expanding the program to other faci l i t ies with the ODOC.  
 
There was no further discussion.  

 
9.  Legislative Update  Jessica Brown, Director  

Communications  
Ms. Brown provided a legis lative status update of ODOC init iatives  as well  as an update 
on other init iat ives  which the agency is  monitoring.  There was no further discussion.  

 
10. Committee Reports  Committee Chairs  

Standing Committees:  
  Audit/Finance –  Chair Todd Holder,  Members Kevin Gross and Frazier Henke  

The committee met on February 12, 2019, to discuss the items presented for  
the meeting this date.  There was no further discussion.  
 

  Criminal Justice Reform –  Chair Adam Luck,  Members Gene Haynes and Dianne 
Owens 
The committee met on February 12, 2019, to discuss the items presented for the 
meeting this date. The committee also discussed the governor ’s public safety 
committee which is  schedule d to meet monthly  and to which Mr. Luck  has been 
appointed. There was no further discuss ion.  
 

  Population/Private Prisons –  Chair Michael Roach, Members Todd Holder and 
Adam Luck  
The committee did not meet. There was no further discussion .  
 

  Public Policy/Affairs  –  Chair Gene Haynes,  Members K evin Gross and Dianne 
Owens 



 
  

The committee met on February 12, 2019, to discuss the items presented for  
the meeting this date.  Committee noted their concerns about one legislative 
init iative which wil l  shift  transport of inmates by the county after sentencing 
to transport by the ODOC. There was no further discussion .  
 

  Executive –  Chair Frazier Henke, Member s Todd Holder and Michael Roach  
The committee met on January 29, 2019, to review and set the agenda for the 
meeting this date. There was no further discussion  

 
11. New Business  Frank X. Henke, IV,  Chair  

There was no new business to discuss.  
 

12. Announcements  Frank X. Henke, IV,  Chair  
There were no announcements.  

 
13. Approval to Enter into  Executive Session  David Cincotta,  General Counsel  

Pursuant  to  25 O.S .  § 307.B.4.  fo r  conf ident ia l  communicat ions  between  a pub l ic  body and 
its  attorney concerning the pend ing invest igat ion  and l i t igat ion o f  the i tems l i sted be low i f  
the pub l ic  body,  with  the adv ice  o f  i ts  attorney,  determines that  d isc losure wi l l  serious ly  
impair  the abi l i ty  o f  the  publ ic  body to  conduct  a  pend ing invest igat ion,  l i t igat ion,  or  
proceeding  in  the publ ic  inter est .  

  Homicide of inmate Anthony Palma #122394 at the Oklahoma State 
Penitentiary (case number IG 19-0011)  

 Mr. Cincotta advised the item l isted on the agenda would require adjournment to 
Executive Session for engaging in confidential  communicat ions between the BOC and 
its attorney. He recommended Chair Henke entertain a motion to enter into executive 
session.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Roach made a motion to enter into Executive Sess ion and Mr. Holder 
seconded the motion. The results of the roll  cal l  were:  Mr. Gross –  yes;  Mr. Haynes –  
yes;  Mr. Henke –  yes;  Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr. Roach –  
yes.  
 
By majority vote, the BOC entered into Executive Sess ion at 1:47 PM. 

 
14. Approval to Return from Executive Sess ion  David Cincotta,  General Counsel  

The BOC returned to the meeting room at 2: 14 PM and Mr. Cincotta advised the BOC 
of the approval needed to return from Executive Sess ion.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Roach made a motion to return from Execut ive Sess ion and Mr. Holder  
seconded the motion. The results of the roll  cal l  were:  Mr. Gross –  yes;  Mr. Haynes –  
yes;  Mr. Henke –  yes;  Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr. Roach –  
yes.  
 
The return was approved by majority vote and the meeting resumed at 2: 14 PM. 

 
15. Approval to Adjourn Meeting  Frank X. Henke, IV,  Chair  



 
  

There being no further business to come before the BOC, Chair Henke requested a 
motion to adjourn the meeting.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Haynes made a motion to adjourn and Mr. Roach seconded the motion. 
The results of the rol l  cal l  were:  Mr. Gross  –  yes;  Mr. Haynes –  yes;  Mr. Henke –  yes; 
Mr. Holder –  yes;  Mr. Luck –  yes;  Ms. Owens –  yes;  Mr. Roach –  yes.  
 
The adjournment was approved by majority vote and the meeting ended at 2:15 PM. 

 
Submitted to the Board of Correct ions by:  

 

 

 
Kim be r ley  Owe n,  Mi n ut e s  C l erk   Dat e  

 
 

I  hereby certi fy that these minutes were duly approved by the Board of Correct ions on June 

12, 2019, in which a quorum was present and voting.  

 
Boar d o f  Corr ec t io ns  M em be r  S ig na tu re  

Pr i nt e d Nam e  

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item #4.B 



 
  

O K L A H O M A  B O A R D  O F  C O R R E C T I O N S  

REGULAR MEETING  MINUTES  
 

 ITEM PRESENTER 
1. Call  to Order   

Pledge of Allegiance  
Roll  Cal l  

Joe M. Al lbaugh, Director  

Director Allbaugh cal led the regular meeting of the Oklahoma Board of  Correct ions 
(BOC) to order  at 9:00 AM on Wednesday,  May 15, 2019, at the Oklahoma Department 
of Corrections (ODOC),  3400 North Martin Luther King Avenue,  in Oklahoma City,  
Oklahoma.  
 
The meeting was preceded by advance not ice of the date, t ime, and place, f i led with 
the Oklahoma Secretary of State on October 31, 2018. An amended meeting notice 
changing the t ime was posted with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 1,  2019.  
An announcement was also given at least twenty -four (24) hours in  advance by  posting 
notice of the date, t ime, place, and agenda of the meeting at  3:40 PM on Monday, May 
13, 2019, at the principal  off ice  of the ODOC, located at  3400 North Mart in Luther King 
Avenue in Oklahoma City,  Oklahoma.  
 
Director Allbaugh then led the meeting attendees in rec it ing the pledge of  al legiance 
to the United States F lag. After the pledge, he asked the clerk to cal l  the roll :  
 

Betty  Gesel l  Present  Michael  W. Roach  Present  

Joseph Gri f f in  Present  T.  Hast ings S iegfr ied  Present  

Steven Harpe  Present  Rodney Thornton  Present  

Reginald  Hines  Present  Dary l  Woodward  Present  

Dr.  Kathryn  LaFortune  Present    

 
Cal l ing of the roll  reflected a quorum was present.  Director Al lbaugh addressed the 
members,  welcoming and thanking them for serving on the BOC. He noted his length 
of t ime with the ODOC as well  as his observations during his tenure of the agency’s  
issues with staff ing,  inmate/offender populat ion,  infrastructure and maintenance .  
Director Al lbaugh advised the members that the BOC meetings for the remainder of 
the year would be held at this location but would begin rotating to the various fac i l it ies 
in January 2020.  

 
2.  Introduction of Board of Corrections Members All  Members  

Director Allbaugh asked that al l  members introduce themselves,  detail ing their  
professional backgrounds .  

 
3.  Oklahoma Board of Corrections  David Cincotta,  General Counsel  



 
  

A.  Discuss ion and rev iew of P -010200, 
Operating Procedures 41 and Polic ies for 
the Oklahoma Board of Corrections  

B.  Summary of Open Meeting Act 
Requirements for the Oklahoma Board of 
Corrections  

Mr. Cincotta introduced himself  to the members,  providing an overview of his unit  and 
responsibil it ies.  An organization chart was inc luded in the BOC Packet for May 15,  
2019.  

A.  Mr. Cincotta discussed P -010200 which is  the policy outl ining the 
responsibil it ies of the BOC. A copy of the pol icy  was inc luded in the BOC Packet 
for May 15, 2019.  He noted policy amendments which wi l l  inc lude the recent  
passage of HB 2480, increasing the BOC from seven (7) members to nine (9)  and 
removing their appointment of the director of Corrections . Mr. Cincotta noted 
a l ist  was provided to the BOC of statutes  which outl ine the powers and duties 
of the BOC.  A copy of  the l ist  was included in the BOC Packet for May 15, 2019 . 
There was no further discussion on this item.  

B.  Mr. Cincotta discussed the Open Meetin g Act  requirements in accordance with 
O.S.  25 §§ 301-314. BOC members had questions regarding l iabil ity for members  
with Mr. Cincotta responding accordingly.  There was no further discussion on 
this item.  

Director Al lbaugh requested  a 10-minute recess at 10:05 AM.  The meeting resumed at 
10:15 AM with Director Allbaugh introducing and welcoming Mr. Chip Keating, Cabinet 
Secretary of Public Safety. Secretary Keating greeted the BO C members and other  
attendees, noting he was attending o n behalf  of Governor J .  Kevin St itt .  Secretary 
Keating discussed the goals of Governor St itt  for the agency and how they hope to 
address the various needs of ODOC such as  infrastructure, pay raises,  etc .  He noted 
several upcoming meetings scheduled with st aff  to address the various goals of the 
governor. Secretary Keating a lso spoke of  the recently -created partnership with the 
Oklahoma Pardon and Parole Board for ODOC to assist  with parole  investigations.  

There was no further discussion on this item.  

 
4.  Operations Update  

A.  Bond Projects  
B.  Offender Management System  

Scott Crow, Chief of 
Operations  

Before providing information on his area, Mr. Crow acknowledged several staff  present 
in the audience:  Mil l icent Newton -Embry, director of Region I;  Ryan Kinsey, act ing 
director of  Region I I ;  James Rudek, inter im director of  Region I I I ;  Kevin Duckworth,  
director of  Probation and Parole Services;  Greg Wil l iams, deputy chief of Operations ;  
Johnny Blevins,  director of Fugit ive Apprehensions and Investigations;  Jeff  Du nkin,  
warden of Kate Barnard Correctional Center;  Aboutanaa El  Habti ,  warden of Mabel 
Bassett Correctional  Center;  David Stenhouse, director  of  Security  Threats  
Intel l igence;  and Ashlee Clemmons, director of Business Services .   
 



 
  

Mr.  Crow introduced himsel f,  stating that  the chief of Operat ions has functional  
oversight  of many facets of the agency, as  well  as  reviewer and advisor to the director .  
He also provided an overview of his area of responsibil it ies;  a n organizat ion chart for 
his area was inc luded in the BOC Packet for May 15, 2019.  
 
Mr. Crow then discussed the fol lowing agenda items with the BOC members:  

A.  Governor Stitt  approved SB 1590 on May 10, 2018, which authorized the 
Oklahoma Capitol Improvement Authority to issue $116.5 mil l ion in bonds for  
the ODOC to  f inance maintenance,  repairs ,  equipment,  and improvements of 
exist ing correctional faci l i t ies .  Mr.  Crow noted there are 102 projects addressed 
by the bond and they wil l  be completed within three dif ferent phases. Projects  
range from HVAC systems, to building upgrades,  to electrical  upgrades. He 
ident if ied several projects which have been completed and several that are 
ongoing. Mr. Crow stated the next project beginning soon is  the roofing project  
at the Mabel Bassett Correctional Center.  BOC members had several quest ions 
about the bond with staff  responding to their inquir ies.  There was no further 
discussion on this item.  
 

B.  The Offender Management System (OMS) contains the digita l  record of al l  
information related to the inmate’s incarceration or supervision. Mr. Crow 
noted the current  OMS is  over thirty years  old and the program is  quick ly los ing 
compatibi l ity with modern te chnology.  OMES Information Technology staff  and 
ODOC are working together to replace the system. In addit ion, the agency is  
also faced with replacing outdated computers throughout the agency which 
affects security needs such as video cameras and fencing. B OC members 
recommended creat ion of a standing BOC committee for technology and systems 
oversight .  There was nothing further to discuss on this item.  

 
Director Allbaugh requested a 2 -hour recess at 11:03 AM to al low the BOC members 
to tour the Kate Barnard Correctional Center and have lunch ; however,  no business  
would be conducted during the tour or lunch. The meeting resumed at 1:00 PM.  

 
5.  Inmate/Offender Population Update  

 
Laura Pitman, Ph.D.,  D irector  

Population, Programs and Strategic Planning  
Dr.  Pitman introduced herself  to the BOC members,  and provided an overview of her  
area of responsibil ity .  An organizat ion chart for her area was included in the BOC 
Packet for May 15, 2019.  
 

A.  Dr. Pitman provided the population update as of Apri l  30,  2019. A copy of the 
update was included in the BOC Packet for May 15, 2019.  Dr.  Pitman noted the 
decrease in the incarcerated grand total  being attributed to the increase of  the 
number of inmates moving to the Global Posit ions Satell ite System (GPS) 
program as wel l  as  from the passage of  SQ 780. BOC members inquired about  
several aspects  of the inmate/offender population update with Dr.  Pitman 
responding to their inquiries .  There was nothing further to discuss  on this item.  

 
6.  Budget Update Ashlee Clemmons, Director  

Business Services  



 
  

A.  Monthly FY 2019 Oklaho ma Department of 
Corrections Budget  

 Ms. Clemmons introduced herself  and provided an overview  of her areas of  
responsibil ity .  An organization chart for her area was included in the BOC Packet for 
May 15, 2019. 
 

A.  Ms. Clemmons discussed the FY2019 Budget Work Program (BWP), explaining 
each funding source. A copy of the BWP was included in the BOC Packet for May 
15, 2019. BOC members inquired about the products sold through the Oklahoma 
Correctional Industries,  the l ease for the North Fork Correct ional  Center,  and 
overtime expenditures  with Ms. Clemmons responding to their questions. There 
was no further  discuss ion on this item.  

 
7.  Health Services  Update 

A.  Hepat it is  C Treatment  
Clint  Cast leberry,  Director  

Health Services  
Mr. Cast leberry provided an overview of Health Services ;  an organization chart for h is  
area was included in the BOC Packet for May 15, 2019.  
 

A.  Mr. Castleberry noted that as of September 2018, ODOC has identif ied 3,107 
inmates with the Hepatit is  C antibody and the costs associated with treatment.  
BOC members asked about the identi f icat ion of inmates who require treatment,  
federal requirements of treatment,  and ramifications of the treatment on the 
inmate populat ion with Mr. Cast leberry providing responses.  There was no 
further discussion on this item.  

  
 

8.  Probation and Parole Services Update  
A.  Community Sentencing  

Kevin Duckworth, Director  
Probation and Parole Services  

 Mr. Duckworth provided info rmation on his  areas of responsibil ity for Probat ion and 
Parole Services which includes Community Sentencing and interstate compact for  
probat ion supervision. An organizat ion chart for h is  area was included in the BOC 
Packet for May 15, 2019.   
 

A.  Mr. Duckworth spoke brief ly about Community Sentencing. BOC members had 
several questions about other aspects of probation and parole with Mr.  
Duckworth responding to each question. There was no further discussion on this  
item. 

 
9.  Legislative Update  Jessica Brown, Director 

Communications  
Ms. Brown introduced herself  to the BOC, providing background of  her career prior to  
and s ince joining the agency. She then provided information about her areas of  
responsibil ity within the agency. An organization chart was inc lud ed in the BOC Packet  
for May 15, 2019.  
 
Ms. Brown provided an update on the agency’s legislative init iatives and their status  
at the end of session. She also noted the passage of several init iat ives which wil l  
impact the agency. There was no further discussion.  



 
  

 
10. New Business  Joe M. Al lbaugh, Director  

There was no new business.  
 

11. Announcements  Joe M. Al lbaugh, Director  
There were no announcements  

 
14. Approval to Adjourn Meeting  Joe M. Al lbaugh, Director  

No vote was taken;  the meeting was adjourned at 2:52 PM.  
 
Submitted to the Board of Correct ions by:  

 

 

 
Kim be r ley  Owe n,  Mi n ut e s  C l erk   Dat e  

 
 

I  hereby certi fy that these minutes were duly approved by the Board of Correct ions on June 

12, 2019, in which a quorum was present and voting.  

 
Boar d o f  Corr ec t io ns  M em be r  S ig na tu re  

Pr i nt e d Nam e  

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Item #5.A 



SHARON L. MCCOY 

 

 
OBJECTIVE: To progress in my career in the Oklahoma Department of Corrections by improving my skills and furthering 

my education so that I may continue to be an asset to the Department. 

 

EDUCATION: Eufaula High School, Eufaula, Oklahoma 

 Graduated – 05/73 

 

 Connors State College, Warner, Oklahoma  

 53 Hours, 1976-1978 

 

 Eastern Oklahoma State College, Wilburton, Oklahoma 

 Associate of Science – May 15, 1998 

 

 Southeastern Oklahoma State University, Durant, Oklahoma 

 Bachelor of Arts – May 13, 2000 

 

EMPLOYMENT: Jess Dunn Correctional Center 

 Interim Warden, April 1, 2019 to Present 

 

 Eddie Warrior Correctional Center, Taft, Oklahoma 

Warden, November 1, 2012 to April 1, 2019 

 

Lexington Assessment and Reception Center, Lexington, Oklahoma 

Interim Warden, August 2012 to October 2012 

 

Eddie Warrior Correctional Center, Taft, Oklahoma 

Deputy Warden, June 2011 to August 2012 

 

John E. Lilley Correctional Center 

Interim Deputy Warden, January 2011 to June 2011 

 

Jackie Brannon Correctional Center 

Unit Manager, September 2002 to May 2009 

 

Oklahoma State Penitentiary, McAlester, Oklahoma 

 Senior Case Manager, October 1995 to September 2002 

 Correctional Counselor, December 1993 to October 1995 

 Correctional Officer II, December 1991 to December 1993 

 Correctional Officer I, October 1981 to December 1991 

 

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING: 

  

 Correctional Officer Cadet Training 

 Jess Dunn Correctional Center 

 Taft, Oklahoma 74463 

 Graduated – 1981 

 

 Correctional Case Management Training, November 1995 

 Affirmative Action Chairman, 1994 

 Honor Guard Training, 1992 

 Drill Instructor Training, 1992 

 



SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS: 

  

 Letter of Appreciation from Ron Ward, Regional Director, 2000 

 Employee of the Year, 1995 

     

  



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item #5.B 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 

Natalie M. Cooper 
 

 
EXPERIENCE 

 

  Conduct on – site facility reviews and audits of records, files and other documents pertaining to 
contractual agreements and programs; observe work activities of facility/county jails/detention 
centers; analyzes and evaluates operations, administration, and programs under t he jurisdiction and 
scope of related contracts; notify facilities of deficiencies identified, and take corrective action as 
appropriate.   

 Monitor the operational and/or administrative aspects of correctional facilities in the areas of 
security and custodial care, classification, food service, health services, physical plant maintenance, 
inmate programmatic activities, religious activities, education, laundry, mail, canteen, and 
correctional industries. Provide guidance and information for applications of l aws, rules and 
regulations pertaining to operation of a correctional institution. Monitored and observed as facilities 
developed, implemented, and applied department policies and procedures to ensure compliance with 
statutory and regulatory agencies. 

 
EMPLOYMENT 
 

        Interim Warden I, Eddie Warrior Correctional Center – Minimum Security  
        4/2019 – Present 
 
        Responsible for the overall operational and administrative functions of a correctional  facility which 

includes security and custodial care, classification, food service, health  services, physical plant 
maintenance, inmate  programmatic activities, religious activities, education, laundry, mail, canteen, 
correctional industries, and agri-services. Ensures facility compliance with department policies and 
procedures; participates in the development, implementation and application of department policies 
and procedures to ensure compliance with statutory and applicable regulatory agencies; responsible 
for interpretation and application of laws, rules and regulations pertaining to operation of a 
correctional facility.  Provides facility operational oversight to ensure all security, administrative, and 
programmatic functions are being carried out effectively, efficiently, and in  accordance with 
department guidelines. Manages the budget, staff, and physical resources. Provides oversight to 
contract service providers as appropriate. Serves as a public relations contact for EWCC as 
needed/required. 

 
 

        Deputy Warden III, OK DOC, Oklahoma State Penitentiary – Maximum Security                                
        4/2017 – March 31, 2019 
 
        Responsible for secondary accountability of the operational and administrative aspects of the 

correctional facility. Assists the warden in a variety of correspondence, reports, and recommendations 
concerning the facility’s programs to departmental officials. Assists the warden in managing staff and 
other resources. Provides  guidance and information as approved by the warden relating to the 
interpretation, applications of laws, rules and regulations pertaining to operation of a correctional  
institution; assists the warden in developing,  implementing, and applying department policies and 
procedures to ensure compliance with statutory and applicable regulatory agencies. Serves as a public 
relations contact for the facility as needed/required.   Serves as the facility Prison Rape Elimination 
Act Compliance Manager, provide oversight to segregated housing units to include death row inmates 
and administrative segregation.   

 
  
 Deputy Warden II, OK DOC, Lexington Assessment and Reception Center  – Medium Security                 

7/2016 - 4/2017 
 
Responsible for secondary accountability of the operational and administrative aspects of a correctional 
facility which include, security and custodial care, classification, food service, health services, physical 
plant maintenance, inmate programmatic activities, religious activities, education, laundry, mail, 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

canteen, correctional industries,  and agri-services. Assists the warden in a variety of correspondence, 
reports, and recommendations concerning the facility’s programs to departmental officials. Serves as 
the primary assistant to the Warden in managing the staff and other resources. Provides guidance and 
information as approved by the Warden relating to the interpretation, applications of laws, rules and 
regulations pertaining to operation of a correctional institution; assists the warden in developing, 
implementing, and applying department policies and procedures to ensure compliance with statutory 
and applicable regulatory agencies. Provides oversight to contract service providers . Serves as a public 
relations contact for the facility as needed/required.  
 
Contract Monitor Specialist, Private Prison and Jail Administration, OK DOC     
8/2012 – 7/2016  
 
Establish monitoring systems to ensure deadlines are met, objectives and tasks completed, and 
deficiencies are corrected; prepares written reports and recommendations for internal department 
review; conducts investigations of unusual occurrences as needed. Provides professional advice and 
guidance to local officials and staff to ensure proper management of program s and to improve practices 
and techniques. Responsible for ensuring terms of contracts are followed in order to provide a safe 
secure, effective , and efficient facility; advises the contract facility of the required standards for safety, 
security, programs, and facility appearance as outlined in the contractual agreement. Coordinates 
appropriate training for vendors. Monitored Lawton Correctional Facility (medium), Cimarron 
Correctional Facility (medium), Jefferson County Detention Center (minimum), and Comanche County 
Detention Center (medium).  
 
Correctional Chief of Security I, OK DOC, Clara Waters Community Corrections Center                            
7/2008 – 8/2012                      
 
Prepare and submit weekly, bi-weekly, monthly, quarterly, and semi-quarterly reports to the appropriate 
entity in timely fashion. Conduct monthly lieutenant meetings to discuss effective as well as ineffective 
processes. Mentor and develop correctional security staff to ensure career progression. Issue 
memorandums and directives to staff and offenders. Direct the overall security operation of the facility. 
Supervise and schedule the daily tasks of correctional Security officers. P erform disciplinary measures 
for correctional security staff to inc lude letters of concern, letters of reprimand. Refine and implemented 
new procedures for the effectiveness of the facility.  Participated on Community Correctional Center, 
Security Audits as well as halfway house audits as appointed by the Administrator of  Community 
Corrections. Organize shakedowns of offenders, living quarters, and the facility. Served as chair and 
board member during the interview process. Conduct sanitation inspections for the facility. Assist in the 
establishment of a new facility and district.  
 
Correctional Chief of Security I, OK DOC, Oklahoma City C ommunity Corrections Center                            
9/2005 – 7/2008 
 
Prepare and submit weekly, bi-weekly, monthly, quarterly, and semi-quarterly reports to the appropriate 
entity in timely fashion. Conduct monthly Sergeant Meetings to discuss effective as well as ineffective 
processes. Mentor and develop correctional security staff to ensure career progression. Issue 
memorandums and directives to staff and offenders. Direct the overall security operation of the facility. 
Supervise and schedule the daily tasks of correctional Security officers. Perform disc iplinary measures 
for correctional security staff to include letters of concern, letters of reprimand. Refine and implemented 
new procedures for the effectiveness of the facility. Participated on Community Correctional Center, 
Security Audits as well as halfway house audits as appointed by the Administrator of Community 
Corrections. Served as Team Leader for the Basic Duty Uniform, Process Action Team. Served as 
facilitator for the Escapes Process Action Team. Served as Co – Chair of the Scholarships department of 
the 2007, Oklahoma Correctional Association Conference. Organize shakedowns of offenders, living 
quarters, and the facility. Served as chair and board member during the interview process.  
Correctional Security Officer IV, OK DOC, Lawton Community Corrections Center (LCCC)                            
4/2004 - 09/2005  
 

    
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Direct the overall security operations of the 0700 - 1500 shift. Supervise the work of subordinate staff. 
Make daily inspections and conduct periodic staff meetings to discuss security issues. Counsel 
subordinates on corrective discipline procedures. Direc t shakedowns, Fire Drills, and other emergency 
drills in accordance to DOC Policy. Act as Chief of Security in his absence as appointed. Knowledgeable 
of prison management, the use and care of firearms, and community relations. Respond quickly and 
sufficiently to emergency situations. Actively involved in the process of offender consolidated record 
cards, detainers, job assignments, discharges/releases, state wide movements/CTU, offender transfers, 
receptions, GPS, paroles, and offender daily count. Familiar with contacting law enforcement agencies, 
and department staff, and general public inquiries of offender movement. Completed offender 
disciplinary procedures training. Has a high level of organizational skills.    
 
Correctional Security Officer III, OK DOC, Lawton CCC                                        9/2003 – 4/2004 
Correctional Security Officer II, OK DOC, Lawton CCC                                        7/2002 – 9/2002 
Correctional Security Officer I, OK DOC, Lawton CCC                                         1/2002 – 9/2002 
                                                                                                               
Conduct counts accurately and timely, transport offenders, use of restraints/use of force, recognize rule 
violations, prepare offense reports, exercise the use of urinalysis/breathalyzers properly and according 
to DOC policy, take an active role in offender disciplinary process, completes inspections required on 
shift, conduct a roving patrol required by post orders. Control keys, restraints, an d sharps. Initiate and 
document searches. Identify contrabnad according to DOC policy, know and understand escape 
procedures. Guide and direct offenders to ensure the task is completed 100% of the time. Use of proper 
phone and radio communications, documnetation of log books are completed properly during  each 
assigned shift. Manintain a working relationship with the public, other employees and the offenders. 
Maintain proper appearance and conduct myself in a professional manner.   
 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATION 
 
  High School Diploma, Lawton Senior High School                                              5/1996                                              

 Correctional Security Officer Pre-Service Training, OK DOC                                4/2002                                      

 Search and Seizure, Council on Law Enforcement and Education Training             6/2003                 

 Training for Trainers, OK DOC                                                                    12/2004 

 Quality Awareness, Teams, Tools, Techniques, OK DOC                                    6/2006 

 Facilitation Skills, OK DOC                                                                         

 7/2006 

 Bachelors of Science, Criminal Justice Management and Ethics Management, Mid America 

Christian University                                                                                    5/2007                                                                                      

 CLEET – Peace Officer Training, OK DOC                                                   

6/2007 

 Oleo Resin Capsicum Instructor (OC Spray), OK DOC                                      

12/2007 

  

 
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS/HONORS AND AWARDS 

 

  Correctional Officer Supervisor of the Year, Agency, OK DOC                                                     
2005 
 

 Making the Difference –Quality Assurance, OK DOC                
2007 
 

 Outstanding Criminal Justice Research Project, Mid – America Christian University                     
2007           

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Item #5.C 



 

Collin B. Nelson 
 

 

 

EDUCATION 

COLLEGE    Mid-America Christian University 
     Oklahoma City, Oklahoma  
     Completing Bachelor of Arts Degree, March 2020  
     Major:  Criminal Justice  
     Minor: Ethics 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE  
 
Interim Warden (Jim E. Hamilton Correctional Center)                      May 15, 2019 – Present 

 
In this role I assume primary responsibility for facility operations which includes security and 
custodial care, classification, food service, health services, physical plant maintenance, inmate 
programmatic activities, religious activities, education, laundry, mail and canteen. I provide 
facility operational oversight to ensure all security, administrative, and programmatic functions 
are being carried out effectively, efficiently, and in accordance with department guidelines. 
 
 
Deputy Warden (Howard McLeod Correctional Center)                      Aug. 2017 – May 2019 
 
In this position, I was responsible for secondary accountability of the operational and 
administrative aspects of the facility to include security and custodial care, classification, food 
service, physical plant, maintenance, programs, religious activities, laundry, mail, and canteen.  I 
assisted the Warden in preparing a variety of correspondence and reports.  I assisted the Warden 
in areas relating to the interpretation and application of laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to 
the operation of a correctional facility.  I provided oversight to contract service providers as 
appropriate along with developing areas within the facility for programmatic growth. Served as 
facility head in the absence of the Warden and assumed primary responsibility of overall facility 
operations. Served as acting Deputy Warden of Operations at the Oklahoma State Penitentiary 
from Sept. of 2018 until December of 2018. 
 
Chief of Security II (Howard McLeod Correctional Center)                  Mar. 2013 – Aug. 2017 
 
In this position, I planned, directed and administered the overall security operations of the facility 
as well as supervised the work of subordinate security staff. Issued directives, memoranda, and 
other information to subordinate personnel. Conducted tours of all units to evaluate efficiency 
and operations to insure sound correctional practices were adhered to. Coordinated the 
activities of the facility Correctional Emergency Response Team (CERT) to insure appropriate 
response during facility or departmental emergencies. Served as liaison to outside law 
enforcement entities and coordinated with them during emergencies. Served as a duty officer on 
a rotating basis with responsibilities for the management of the institution. Served as acting 
Deputy Warden and facility head during their absence.  
 
 
 
Captain (Mack H. Alford Correctional Center)                                      Sept. 2010 – Mar. 2013  



 
In this position, I assumed primary responsibility for the supervision of correctional officers on 
each shift to which I was assigned. I was responsible for enforcing compliance with agency and 
facility administrative directives. Further, I made recommendations to the Chief of Security on 
matters pertaining to the safe operation of the facility and strived to initiate or develop 
improvements to established security practices. I served as facility CERT Commander and 
served as acting Chief of Security. I was selected as MACC’s Correctional Supervisor of the 
Year in 2011. 
 
Lieutenant (Mack H. Alford Correctional Center)              September 2005 – September 2010 
 
In this position, I assumed secondary responsibility for the supervision of correctional officers. I 
acted in support of the primary shift supervisor and maintained time sheets of correctional 
officers assigned to my shift. I served as facility investigator and was custodian of contraband 
and evidence confiscated at the facility. I also prepared investigative reports and 
correspondence for the Chief of Security. I served as facility CERT Co-Commander as well and 
was selected as MACC’s Correctional Supervisor of the Year in 2009.  
 
 
Sergeant (Mack H. Alford Correctional Center)              July 1998 – Sept. 2005 
 
Responsible for overseeing the security of the medium security housing units and supervised 
subordinate correctional officers assigned to the unit.  Conducted random shakedowns and pat 
searches throughout the unit in an effort to control the flow of contraband into the unit.  Served as 
a role model for less experienced officers and gave direction to the offender population.  Selected 
as MACC’s Correctional Officer of the Year in 1999.  
 
Correctional Security Officer (Mack H. Alford Correctional Center)        Dec. 1995 – July 1998 
 
During this time, I was assigned to various posts on different shifts to include visiting, perimeter, 
towers, SHU, yard officer, east gate officer, and unit officer.  I learned and performed the 
necessary roles of a correctional officer.  During this time, I also served as a Transitional 
Development Specialist, and was selected as a member of MACC CERT.  
 
 
SPECIAL TRAINING, KNOWLEDGE, ACCOMPLISHMENTS  
 

 Correctional Leadership Development II, III, & IV 

 NIC Peer Training  

 CLEET Basic Peace Officer Certification 

 CLEET Rifle, Pistol and Shotgun Instructor 

 2011 MACC Correctional Supervisor of the Year 

 2009 MACC Correctional Supervisor of the Year  

 1999 MACC Correctional Officer of the Year 
    



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Item #6 















 

 

 

 

 

  

Item #12 



Amendment #1 Correctional Services Contract     
  1 
 
 

  

AMENDMENT #1 

CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AMENDMENT # 1 CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT (Amendment #1), effective the 1st 
day of July 2019, by and between the GEO GROUP, Inc. (“Contractor”) and the OKLAHOMA 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ("STATE”) hereby amends the FY 2019 Correctional Services 
Contract (“Contract”) that took effect July 1, 2018 for services at the Lawton Correctional Facility. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the joint and mutual exercise of their powers, and in 
consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto recite and agree to 
amend the Contract as follows:    
 

Appendix C, “Liquidated Damages” is amended to the version 
attached hereto.   

 
All other terms and conditions of the Correctional Services Contract, remain the same and 
continue in effect through the term of this contract. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the date indicated below. 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________________ 
Joe M. Allbaugh, Director   Amber Martin, Vice President 
Oklahoma Department of Corrections The GEO Group, Inc. 
  
Date: __________________________ Date: _________________________________ 
 
 
Approved by a vote of the Board of Corrections on this 12th day of June, 2019. 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
David A. Cincotta, General Counsel 
Oklahoma Department of Corrections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Amendment #1 Correctional Services Contract     
  2 
 
 

APPENDIX C 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 

Liquidated damages for each day of a breach will be calculated as follows: 
 

V x B x $25.00 when 
 

  Relative Value of Breach (B) - Failure to: 
Service Area Relative 

Value (V) 
Provide 
Services 

Document Report Comply w/Other 
Applicable 

Requirements 
Security and control, ACA 
Accreditation, Health Services, 
Use of Force, Escapes, and 
Contract Monitoring 

5 5 2 2 5 

Erroneous Release (May 
enhance to a Relative Value of 
5 with aggravating 
circumstances.  Mitigating 
circumstances may also be 
considered) 

4 5    

Sanitation and Hygiene, Food 
Service, Mail, Religion, Access 
to Court, Offender Discipline, 
Grievance, Visitation, Records 
and Reports, Employee 
Qualifications and Training 

4 4 2 2 4 

Operating Standards, 
Transportation, Maintenance, 
Repairs and Replacements, 
Offender Work, Academic & 
Vocational Training, Sentence 
Computation Data, 
Classification and Case 
Management, Commissary, 
Policies/Procedures/Post 
Orders, and Offender 
Management Fund/Bank 
Accounts 

3 3 1 1 3 

Laundry and Offender Clothing, 
Telecommunications, 
Supplies/Perishables, and 
Recreation 

2 3 1 1 3 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TO ASSIST IN REVIEWING AMENDMENT 
#1 CORRECTIONAL SERVICE CONTRACT 

THE ORIGINAL CORRECTIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT IS ATTACHED 





































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

Item #13 



Amendment #4 Correctional Services Contract       1 
 

AMENDMENT #4 

CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AMENDMENT #4 CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT (“Amendment #4”), effective the 1st 
day of July 2019, by and between CoreCivic, Inc (“Contractor”) (name changed in 2016 from 
Corrections Corporation of America to CoreCivic, Inc., which was a change in name only) and the 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (“State”) hereby amends the Correctional Services 
Contract (“Contract”) that first took effect October 1, 2014 for services at the Cimarron 
Correctional Facility and the Davis Correctional Facility, and Amendment #4 incorporates all 
amendments to said Contract that have been executed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the joint and mutual exercise of their powers, and in 
consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto recite and agree to 
amend the following section of the Contract as follows: Article 2, Section 2.2. 

 
Section 2.2 Term of Agreement.  The parties agree to review and 
consider additional proposed revisions which may arise throughout 
the term of the contract.  The parties hereto agree that the term of 
this contract is for a term of five years and nine months with the 
initial nine-month period beginning October 1, 2014 and ending 
June 30, 2015, with five one year renewal options beginning July 1, 
2015 and ending June 30, 2020, or until all funds are unavailable, 
as provided herein.  Renewal of the contract shall be automatic at 
the beginning of each successive fiscal year of the contract, subject 
only to the availability of funds annually appropriated by the 
Legislature for such purpose as set out in section 10.5 of the 
Contract.  This Agreement shall not be construed to encumber 
state funds beyond the amount appropriated for such Fiscal Year.   

 
All other terms and conditions of the Contract, including amendments, are to remain the same 
and continue in effect through the term of the Contract, as amended.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the date indicated 
below. 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________________ 
Joe M. Allbaugh, Director   Natasha Metcalf, Vice President 
Oklahoma Department of Corrections CoreCivic, Inc. 
  
Date: __________________________ Date: _________________________________ 
 
Approved by a vote of the Board of Corrections on this 12th day of June, 2019. 



Amendment #4 Correctional Services Contract       2 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
David A. Cincotta, General Counsel 
Oklahoma Department of Corrections 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TO ASSIST IN REVIEWING AMENDMENT 
#4 CORRECTIONAL SERVICE CONTRACT 

THE ORIGINAL CORRECTIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT AND AMENDMENTS 1-3 ARE 

ATTACHED 































































































































































AMENDMENT #3 

FY 2017 ANNUAL RENEWAL OF THE 

CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

BETWEEN 

CORRECTIONS CORPORATION OF AMERICA 

AND 

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

THIS CORRECTIONAL  SERVICES CONTRACT, dated as of  the 1st day of  July 2016, by and between  the 

CORRECTIONS  CORPORATION  OF  AMERICA  (the  Contractor)  and  the  OKLAHOMA  DEPARTMENT  OF 

CORRECTIONS (the “State”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is the Operator of an adult male medium and maximum security correctional 

facility,  Cimarron  Correctional  Facility,  consisting  of  1542 medium  and  180 maximum  security  beds 

located at 3200 S. Kings Highway, Cushing, Oklahoma 74023 (the “Facility”); and an adult male medium 

and maximum security correctional facility, Davis Correctional Facility, consisting of 1360 medium and 360 

maximum security beds located at 6888 E. 133rd, Holdenville, Oklahoma 74848 (the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to provide the Facility for housing offenders of the State of Oklahoma 

and to provide for the operation and maintenance of the Facility; and successfully submitted a proposal 

duly accepted for negotiation by the State, and 

WHEREAS, the State desires to acquire the right to house offenders  in the Facility and provide for the 

Facility’s operations in the manner contemplated hereby; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the joint and mutual exercise of their powers, and in consideration 

of  the mutual covenants herein  contained,  the parties hereto  recite and agree  to amend  the current 

Contract, with existing amendments, previous annual  renewals  still applying  to  this  renewal contract, 

unless otherwise specified, with  the agreements as described herein as  follows: Article 2, Section 2.2, 

Term of Contract; Appendix A, “Department and Division Policies and Directives Applicable to Contractor”; 

Appendix D, “Health Services”; Appendix E, Required Materials for Law Library;”  Appendix F, CCF Staffing 

Pattern; and Appendix G, DCF Staffing Pattern. 

ARTICLE 2 

TERM OF THE CONTRACT 

Section 2.2 Term of the Contract.  The Contractor agrees to renew the contract with the State for a period 

beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.  There remain two additional one‐year renewal options 





APPENDIX A 
DEPARTMENT & DIVISION POLICIES AND DIRECTIVES 

APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTOR 

(Revised July 1, 2016) 

 
OP‐020307  “Sex and Violent Crime Offender Registration” 

OP‐030101  “Unit Management Overview and Major Objectives” except for staffing requirements of 
I.B. 3‐5. 

OP‐030102  “Offender Housing” 

OP‐030103  “Offender Job and Program Assignments” 

OP‐030106  “Recreation Activity Programs” 

OP‐030112  “Religious Services” 

OP‐030115  “Access to Courts/Law Libraries” 

OP‐030116  “Offender Libraries” 

OP‐030117  “Correspondence, Publications, and Audio/Video Media Guidelines” 

OP‐030118  “Visitation” 

OP‐030119  “Offender Telephone Privileges” 

OP‐030120  “Inmate Property” 

OP‐030122  “Offender Authority Over Other Offenders” 

OP‐030123  “Offender Rights, Privileges and Responsibilities” 

OP‐030134  “Chemical Abuse Testing” 

OP‐030401  “Private Prison Monitoring Requirements 

OP‐030501  “Personal Hygiene and Appearance Code” 

OP‐030601  “Oklahoma Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA)” 

OP‐031001  “Offender Escorted Leave/Activities” 

OP‐040101  “Facility Security Standards” 

OP‐040104  “Inspection of Security Devices and Equipment 

OP‐040105  “Key and Lock Control Standards” 

OP‐040107  “Tool Control Standards” 



OP‐040109  “Control of Contraband and Physical Evidence” 

OP‐040110  “Search and Seizure Standards” 

OP‐040111  “Transportation of Offenders” 

OP‐040114  “Security of Offenders in Non‐Prison Hospitals” 

OP‐040115  “Offender Identification and Crime Alert Bulletin” 

OP‐040117  “Investigations” 

OP‐040204  “Segregation Measures” 

OP‐040401  “Transportation of Offenders by Central Transportation Unit (CTU)” 

OP‐050103  “Escape Notification Procedures” 

OP‐050108  “Use of Force Standards and Reportable Incidents” 

OP‐052001  “Emergency Procedures for Private Prisons” 

OP‐060101  “Overview of Case Management” 

OP‐060102M  “Male Initial Custody Assessment Procedures” 

OP‐060103M  “Male Custody Assessment Procedures” 

OP‐060104  “Community Corrections Assessment”  

OP‐060106  “Non‐Associations and Protective Measures”  

OP‐060107  “Systems of Incarceration” 

OP‐060125  “Offender Disciplinary Procedures” 

OP‐060203  “Adjustment Review” 

OP‐060204  “Offender Transfers” 

OP‐060205  “Parole Process Procedures” 

OP‐060211  “Sentence Administration” 

OP‐060212  “Maintenance and Access of Offender Records” 

OP‐060901  “Pre‐Release Planning and Re‐Entry Process” 

OP‐080201  “Private Sector Correctional Industry Standards” 

OP‐080501  “Oklahoma Correctional Industries Pay Plan” 

OP‐090101  “Standards for Offender Programs” 

OP‐090107  “Inmate Education Program” 



OP‐090124   “Offender Grievance Process” 

OP‐090128  “Offender Marriages” 

OP‐090131  “Offender Financial Responsibility Program” 

OP‐090133  “Career and Technical Training” 

OP‐090211  “Volunteer Services” 

OP‐090215  “Victim Services” 

OP‐120230  “Offender Banking System” 

OP‐120701  “Employee and Offender Welfare Fund” 

OP‐130106  “Environmental Health, Safety and Sanitation Inspections” 

OP‐130107  “Standards for Inspections” 

OP‐150601  “Tobacco Regulations” 

 

ANY OF THE ABOVE DEPARTMENT POLICIES AND DIRECTIVES WHICH BY THEIR TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT 

ARE NOT WHOLLY APPLICABLE TO THE CONTRACTOR’S FACILITY ARE INTENDED AS DECLARATIONS OF THE 

DEPARTMENT’S MANAGEMENT POLICIES.  THESE POLICIES ARE TO BE ADHERED TO BY THE CONTRACTOR, 

HOWEVER  THE  CONTRACTOR  MAY  IMPLEMENT  PROCEDURES  THAT  ARE  CONSISTENT  WITH  THESE 

DEPARTMENT MANAGEMENT POLICIES.  THE CONTRACTOR WILL COMPLY WITH ANY PORTION OF OTHER 

POLICIES THAT ARE REFERENCED BY ANY OF THE POLICIES INCLUDED IN THIS APENDIX.  

   



Appendix D 
Health Services 

(Revised July 1, 2016) 

Responsibility for Medical, Mental Health, and Dental Services 

A. Introduction:    The  Contractor will  provide medical,  dental,  and mental  health  care  services 

delivered by licensed health care staff overseen by a health administrator in accordance with the 

Oklahoma Department of Corrections’ procedures,  the medical Operating Standards, and  this 

contract.  Contractor shall follow all Department medical policy with the following exceptions: 

 

OP‐140130 entitled “Pharmacy”   

OP‐140134 entitled “Credentialing Process” 

OP‐140140 entitled “Mental Health Administration and Organization” 

OP‐140105 entitled “Female Offender Health” 

 

The  Contractor  will  follow  CONTRACTOR  policies  in  these  areas  and  will  notify  DOC 

Medical/Mental Health services in writing of desired changes in these areas.  DOC will review the 

changes  and  return  them  to  the  Contractor within  30  days  of  receipt.  Changes will  not  be 

implemented  prior  to  the  Contractor’s  receipt  of written  approval  from  the  DOC,  and  such 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

1. Definitions: 

 

a. Acute Condition:  An acute (immediate or severe) episode of illness or the treatment of 

injuries  related  to an accident,  trauma, or other  impairment or during  recovery  from 

surgery. 

 

b. Emergency Care:  The medical or surgical care necessary to treat the sudden onset of a 

potentially  life  or  limb  threatening  condition  or  symptom.    To  qualify  as  a medical 

emergency  the  care must  begin within  12  hours  after  onset.   Heart  attacks,  strokes, 

poisoning, loss of consciousness or respiration, and convulsions are examples of medical 

emergencies.  

c. Urgent Care:  Care medically necessary to prevent deterioration, other than normal aging 

of an offender’s health that results from an unforeseen illness or injury and be delivered 

within 72 hours. 

 

d. Chronic Care:  A pattern of care that focuses on long‐term care of offenders with chronic 

(longstanding, persistent) disease or conditions.  It includes care specific to the problem 

as well as other measures to encourage self‐care, to promote health and to prevent loss 

of function. 

 



e. Medical Care:  All care including acute and chronic care that is not classified as emergency 

care which  is  routinely  required by prevailing  community  standards  and  as described 

herein. 

 

f. Inpatient Care:  Health care received by a patient admitted to an institution licensed and 

operated pursuant to law which is primarily engaged in providing health services on an 

inpatient basis for the care and treatment of injured or sick individuals through medical, 

diagnostic and surgical facilities. 

 

g. Outpatient Care:  Health care provided where the offender remains ambulatory and is not 

kept in a health care facility overnight. 

 

h. Major Mental Illness:  An offender will be identified as having a major illness if currently 

prescribed psychotropic medications. 

 

i. Reimbursable Medical Costs:  Those medical, mental health and dental costs payable by 

the State Of Oklahoma. 

 

B. Licensure:  All health care providers will be licensed, certified or registered as required by state 

and federal laws and regulations.  All health services employees will practice only within the scope 

of their licensor’s certification and the Medical or Nursing Practice Act. 

 

C. Health Care:  Health care will be delivered onsite at least 16 hours per day Monday through Friday 

and at least 8 hours per day Saturday, Sunday and legal holidays, with provision for emergency 

services 24 hours, seven days per week, either on or offsite at a nearby emergency facility.  There 

shall be on‐call nursing coverage during hours when there is no health care staff at the facility. 

 

D. Primary Medical Care:  The Contractor’s health care program will provide offenders with primary 

health care services to include but not necessarily limited to the following services at the facility: 

 

 Medical screening performed upon admission to the facility 

 Primary care services, including sick call in accordance with the DOC Operating Standards 

to general and lockdown populations. 

 Physician services 

 Nursing services 

 Medical observation services 

 Mental health services 

 Laboratory services 

 Vision services 

 Radiology services 

 Prescription pharmacy services 



 Over‐the‐counter medications 

 24 hour emergency medical, mental health, and dental health care services 

 Treatment, management, and control of TB, HIV/AIDS, and other communicable diseases 

 Special medical and dental diets 

 Physical therapy services, speech therapy, and occupational therapy 

 All orthotic devices 

 Durable medical supplies and equipment 

 Medical and dental prostheses 

 Hearing aids 

 Glasses 

 

E. Dental Care:  The dental program provided by the Contractor will provide offenders with dental 

treatment to include but not necessarily limited to the following services: 

 

 Emergency treatment of dental abscesses 

 Amalgam and composite restorations 

 Root canal treatment on anterior teeth that are restorable 

 All necessary extractions, to include soft tissue and partial bony impaction 

 Full dentures 

 Maxillary removable partial dentures when necessary for proper mastication 

 Mandibular removable partial dentures when necessary for proper mastication 

 Oral prophylaxis 

 Annual cleaning 

 Access to oral surgery specialty outpatient care to include but not limited to extractions, 

biopsies, or other surgical procedures and the treatment of fractured jaws 

 Partial dentures for anterior teeth 

 

F. Mental Health Care:  The mental health program will provide adequate access to a psychologist 

and psychiatrist, clinical practice nurse, or psychiatrically trained physician for consultative and 

prescriptive services.  Although a licensed psychologist is preferred, a part‐time psychologist or 

psychiatrist may be employed for on‐site consultation and supervision of licensed master’s level 

professionals.   The mental health personnel will be  responsible  to screen, evaluate, and  treat 

major mental illnesses as required by DOC OP‐140201 entitled “Mental Health Services Duties and 

Responsibilities.”  The Contractor will maintain a suicide prevention plan in accordance with its 

policies and procedures.  Services will also include, at a minimum, substance abuse services, to 

include  education  and  self‐help,  basic  cognitive  behavioral  group  programs  and  individual 

psychological counseling.  

 

G. Optometric Care:   All offenders 40 years of age and older shall be offered, at their request, an 

annual optometric examination to include testing for glaucoma, as well as testing for near and far 

sightedness.  Offenders less than 40 years of age may be offered a visual acuity screening test.  An 



offender whose vision tests as 20/70 or worse  in one or both eyes (with or without glasses)  is 

eligible to receive one optometric examination annually. 

 

H. Outpatient  Care:    The  Contractor will  be  liable,  as  set  forth  in  Section  5.6.L.,  for  the  costs 

associated with  the delivery of outpatient medical, mental health, optometric and dental care 

incurred away from the facility.  Access to OU Medical Center (OUMC) shall be available to the 

Contractor under the same conditions, as it is available to offenders in state operated facilities.  

Medical appointments will be made upon referral from the facility physician and upon acceptance 

by the hospital physicians. 

 

I. Inpatient Care:  The Contractor will provide such care onsite if a licensed hospital is a part of the 

prison facility.   If not, a  licensed hospital(s) which provides for all  inpatient medical/psychiatric 

services as appropriate will be utilized. OU Medical Center (OUMC) may be utilized as set forth in 

Section 5.6.H.   The costs  for  inpatient or outpatient surgery, all hospital costs and  the cost of 

autopsies will be paid as set forth in Section 5.6.L. 

 

J. Emergency Care and Urgent Care:  The Contractor will be liable, as set forth in Section 5.6.L., for 

the costs associated with the delivery of Emergency care and Urgent care.  In emergency medical 

situations, or  in urgent care situations, the Contractor will make appropriate arrangements for 

medical treatment.  Where possible, the Contractor will attempt to arrange the emergency care 

at OU Medical Center (OUMC).  Emergency transportation by air or ground ambulance will be at 

the Contractor’s expense. 

 

K. AIDS Patients and HIV Positive offenders:  The Contractor will be responsible for the treatment of 

offenders infected with the Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).  This will include, but will not 

be limited to, all in‐patient and outpatient medical costs excluding the cost of providing antiviral 

medications therapeutically indicated for the treatment of the HIV.  If the number of HIV positive 

offender population being treated exceeds 10 offenders then the medication cost allocation shall 

be  subject  to negotiation.   The Contractor may  return any offender diagnosed with Acquired 

Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), as defined by the Center for Disease Control to the State. 

The Contractor  is  responsible  for  treatment of Hepatitis C patients  subject  to  the exceptions 

contained  herein.    The  Contractor  will  treat  Hepatitis  C  offenders  in  accordance  with  the 

Oklahoma DOC protocol in existence at the time of execution of this Contract.  When an offender 

becomes an end‐stage Hepatitis C patient and can no longer be treated at the Contractor’s facility, 

the DOC will transfer the offender out of the facility. 

 

L. Payments for Health Service:  NOTE:  Currently some treatment is provided at OU Medical Center 

(OUMC) at no cost to the Department or the Contractor.  If free services become unavailable in 

the future, the Contractor will be responsible for expenses as set forth herein and the per diem 

shall  be  adjusted  based  on  offender  patient  data  from  the  previous  two  year  period.    The 

Department and Contractor shall provide each other with all offender patient data for the prior 

two year period within sixty days of the date of closing of the hospital. Offender patient data shall 



include,  in  a manner  consistent with  federal  and  state privacy  laws,  the number of offender 

patient visits and the number and type of medical procedures performed on offender patients on 

behalf of the Department or the Contractor.  After the first year of such additional expenses, the 

State will  review with  the  Contractor  these  operating  costs.    If  the  parties  cannot  reach  an 

agreement regarding a per diem adjustment within 90 days of the close of the hospital, either 

party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety days' notice.  Such a termination shall not be 

considered a termination for cause. 

 

1. Onsite Health Care – The Contractor will be responsible for the cost of all health care, staff, 

medications, supplies, services, equipment, and communications provided to or for offenders 

onsite,  whether  required  by  the  Contractor’s  staff  or  outside  consultants.    The  cost  of 

additional  pages,  forms,  and  incorporation  of  outside medical  consultant  reports  to  the 

medical record is included in costs paid by the Contractor. 

 

2. Offsite  outpatient  (to  include  emergency  care  and  urgent  care)  –  The  Contractor will  be 

responsible for payment direct to the billing facility for the costs of all such care,  including 

medications, special treatments, supplies, and prosthesis ordered by the outpatient provider 

for the health care of the offender, which originates while the contract is in effect between 

the Contractor and the Department. 

 

3. Offsite inpatient hospital – The Contractor will be responsible for payment direct to the billing 

facility for the costs of all such care provided in the hospital or ordered to be provided after 

the inmate is returned to the institution.  The Contractor may claim reimbursement from the 

Department for the  inpatient hospitalization  in a  licensed hospital, for the hospital charges 

only, not separate physician or other provider charges, for the amount which exceeds $70,000 

per  inpatient  hospital  discharge  for  each  single  hospital  stay which  originates while  the 

contract  for  services  is  in  effect  between  the  Contractor  and  the  Department.    The 

Department will reimburse the Contractor at the rate of 70% for all charges over $70,000.   

 

4. Department health services personnel must be notified of hospitalizations within 24 hours 

following  admission.   When  admission  occurs  after  routine working  hours, weekends  or 

holidays, notification must occur the next working day.  Reimbursement, as set forth herein, 

for hospitalizations will occur only when notification is received within 24 hours of admission.  

An authorization number will be  issued by Department health services personnel  for each 

hospitalization.   Prior  to Department personnel processing payment  to  the Contractor  for 

reimbursement, the Contractor must forward a billing summary and copies of the invoices, 

with the authorization number noted on each  invoice and a completed authorization form 

attached, to the Department central offices.  The Department reserves the right to audit the 

billings for such charges for accuracy and medical necessity as part of the claim process. 

 

5.  Kate Barnard Community Corrections Center Dental/Surgical Unit—The Contractor will be 

responsible for payment of services provided at the KBCC Dental/Surgical Unit located at 3400 



Martin Luther King Blvd, for a flat fee of $350.00 per inmate, per visit.  The flat fee includes, 

but is not limited to, X‐rays, local anesthetics, IV fluids and medications, needles and syringes, 

scalpels, nitrous oxide/oxygen, suture material, surgical burs, surgical gowns, barrier covers, 

and other  sundry  surgical  supplies.   The  flat  fee does not  include  services provided by an 

outside provider, which may be billed directly to the Contractor. 

 

M. Medical  Co‐Pay  Program:    The  Contractor  will  implement  a  medical  co‐pay  procedure  in 

accordance with Department Policy and Procedure OP‐140117 entitled “Access to Health Care”.  

.  Money received in connection with any medical co‐payment plan will be reported monthly to 

the Department on a quarterly basis. 

 

N. Security:    Security  services  for  authorized  outpatient/diagnostic/specialty  care  delivered  off‐

facility will be the responsibility of the Contractor.  During any period the offender is in the custody 

of the Contractor and is housed in a local, private hospital, the Contractor will provide security 

services.  The Department will provide security for inpatient hospitalizations at OU Medical Center 

(OUMC), as long as Department maintains a security post at this location. 

 

O. Medical Records:   The Department medical record will be transferred with the offender to the 

private  facility.    All  offender  x‐rays will  be  forwarded  to  the Medical  Unit  at  the  Lexington 

Assessment and Reception Center.  Upon the return of an offender to a Department facility, the 

offender’s Department medical records and a complete copy of all medical records generated 

during  incarceration at  the private  facility will be provided  to  the Department health  services 

personnel.  The Contractor will retain offender prescription refill requests for six (6) months after 

an offender is transferred from the Facility. 

 

P. The Contractor will implement a medical record system utilizing the Department’s medical record 

and chart forms and observing the requirements for protected health information as described in 

this Appendix. 

 

1.  The Contractor will ensure the use of the Problem Oriented Medical Record (POMR) format 

and shall ensure that accurate, comprehensible, legible, and up‐to‐date medical information 

is  maintained  on  each  offender  under  its  care.    Medical  records  will  be  considered 

confidential.    The  Contractor  will  ensure  specific  compliance  with  laws  and  standards 

regarding confidentiality, informed consent, and access/disclosure. 

 

2. Procedures will be instituted for the receipt and filing of all outside consults, emergency room 

visits, and  inpatient hospitalizations.   The Contractor will comply with the Oklahoma State 

Statute regarding retention of health records.  All medical records, including x‐ray films, are 

the property of the State of Oklahoma. 

 

Q. Administrative Reports:  The Contractor’s health services administrator or designee will prepare 

a monthly statistical report to be submitted to the Department’s health services division. 



 

R. Audits and Inspections:  Department medical personnel will conduct an audit and inspection of 

the facility health services unit on at least a semiannual basis and more often as required. 

 

S. Medical Quality Assurance and Self‐Monitoring Program:   A quality assurance review and self‐

monitoring  program will  be  established  and maintained  to  ensure  that  communication  and 

intensive review of serious issues, such as an offender death, serious injury, et al, is initiated by 

the Contractor and that the Contractor informs the State about the circumstances, details, and 

corrective measure  taken  in  such  an  event.    Notification  will  be  pursuant  to  Section  5.18.  

Forwarding of the corrective action plan shall be within 45 days of the precipitating serious event. 

Staffing Pattern and DOC Procedures:  In regard to staffing pattern, DOC will accept CONTRACTOR staffing 

patterns provided CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with DOC Health Services procedures and implements 

a quality assurance process, including doctor to doctor communication, that addresses self‐monitoring, 

continuity  of  care  and  quality  issues  and  in  turn  communicates  this  information,  given  certain 

confidentiality  requirements,  to  the DOC Medical  Services Division.   For  the purpose of  this Contract 

regarding medical issues, correspondence with the Chief Medical Officer of the facility or CONTRACTOR 

will constitute official notice pursuant to the Contract requiring immediate action. 

   



   

APPENDIX F 
FACILITY 12-HOUR STAFFING PATTERN 

CIMARRON CORRECTIONAL FACILITY BASED UPON  1,650 
OFFENDERS 

Title  Approved Title  Approved 
Warden 1.00 Food Service Manager* 1.00

Assistant Warden 2.00
Assistant Food Service 
Manager* 1.00

Manager Learning And 
Development 1.00 Food Service Supervisor* 10.00
Manager, Operations Finance 1.00 Health  Services Administrator 1.00
Bookkeeper 1.00 Physician  1.00
Accounting Clerk 2.00 ARNP/PA 1.00
Manager, Human Resources 1.00 Clinical Supervisor 1.00
Human Resource Assistant 1.00 Psychologist, Part-Time 0.50
Investigator 1.00 Mental Health Coordinator 2.00
Manager, Quality Assurance  1.00 RN 8.00
Safety Manager 1.00 LPN 9.75
Grievance Coordinator 1.00 Certified Medication Assistant 3.75
Master Scheduler 1.00 Medical Records Clerk 2.00
Mailroom Supervisor 1.00 Dentist  2.00
Mailroom Clerk 2.00 Dental Assistant 2.00
Secretary 1.00 Dental Hygienist 0.50
Administrative Clerk 10.00 Psychiatrist* 0.75
Chief Of Unit Management 1.00 Optometrist* PRN
Classification/Jobs Coordinator 1.00 Principal 1.00
Unit Manager 4.00 Academic Instructor 5.00
Case Manager 13.00 Vocational Instructor 5.00
Correctional Counselor 13.00 Librarian 1.00
Records Supervisor 1.00 Librarian, Part-Time 0.50
Records Specialist 1.00 Diagnostician* PRN
Records Clerk 2.00 Chief of Security 1.00
Maintenance Supervisor 1.00 Shift Supervisor 6.00
Maintenance Worker 5.00 Assistant Shift Supervisor 6.00
Warehouse Manager 1.00 Senior Correctional Officer  16.00
Warehouse/Commissary Worker 4.00 Correctional Officer  132.00
Laundry Supervisor 1.00 STG Officer  1.00
Recreation Supervisor 1.00 TOTAL 302.75
Program Facilitator - Substance 
Abuse 1.00   
Chaplain 2.00 *Indicates Contract Staff  
     
    7/01/2016
     
     



 
 
 

APPENDIX G 
FACILITY 12-HOUR STAFFING PATTERN 

DAVIS CORRECTIONAL FACILITY BASED UPON  1,670 OFFENDERS 

Title  Approved Title  Approved
 

Warden 1.00 Food Service Manager* 1.00
Assistant Warden 2.00 Assistant Food Service Manager* 1.00
Manager Learning And 
Development 1.00 Food Service Supervisor* 4.00
Manager, Operations Finance 1.00 Health  Services Administrator 1.00
Bookkeeper 1.00 Physician  1.00
Accounting Clerk 1.00 ARNP/PA 1.00
Manager, Human Resources 1.00 Clinical Supervisor 1.00
Human Resource Assistant 1.00 Psychiatrist 1.00
Investigator 1.00 Mental Health Coordinator 3.00
Manager, Quality Assurance  1.00 RN 6.00
Safety Manager 1.00 LPN 8.00
Grievance Coordinator 1.00 Certified Medication Assistant 5.00

Master Scheduler 1.00
Certified Medication Assistant, 
Part-Time  1.00

Mailroom Supervisor 1.00 Medical Records Clerk 2.00
Mailroom Clerk 2.00 Dentist  1.00
Secretary 1.00 Dentist, Part-Time  0.50
Administrative Clerk 11.00 Dental Assistant 1.00
Chief Of Unit Management 1.00 Dental Assistant 1.00
Classification/Jobs Coordinator 1.00 Dental Hygienist, Part-Time 0.50
Unit Manager 4.00 Optometrist* PRN
Case Manager 14.00 Principal 1.00
Correctional Counselor 16.00 Academic Instructor 5.00
Records Manager 1.00 Vocational Instructor 3.00
Records Supervisor 1.00 Librarian 1.00
Records Clerk 2.00 Diagnostician* PRN
Maintenance Supervisor 1.00 Chief of Security 1.00
Maintenance Worker 5.00 Shift Supervisor 6.00
Warehouse Manager 1.00 Assistant Shift Supervisor 6.00
Warehouse/Commissary Worker 3.00 Senior Correctional Officer  20.00
Laundry Supervisor 1.00 Correctional Officer  137.00
Recreation Supervisor 1.00 STG Officer  1.00
Chaplain 1.00 TOTAL 303.00
     
   *Indicates Contract Staff  
    7/01/2016


	Fixed Rate Information for Packet.pdf
	Attachment A - rates to be adopted
	Fixed Rate Letter March 2019
	2019.05.01 Supporting Documentation

	GEO Contract for Packet.pdf
	GEO Amendment #1; Amending Appendix C
	CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES


	TO ASSIST IN REVIEWING AMENDMENT
	FY19 Correctional Services Contract

	CoreCivic Contract for Packet.pdf
	Amendment #4; Term extended to 6-30-2020
	TO ASSIST IN REVIEWING AMENDMENT
	Correctional Services Contract
	Amendment #1
	Amendment 2
	Amendment 3


